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DIRECTORS RERPORT

The drectors of Ahl United Bank (UK) PLC (the 'Bank') are pleased to submit the
audited financiat statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

Resuls and dhiderds
The profit, after tax of the Bank and its subsidianes for the year amounted to $36 380,000

No intenm dividend was proposed or paid in the year A final dividend of $20 000,000
1s proposed

Pancid’ actvites a1d révieny of the busiress

The Bank 1s an authorsed institution under the United Kingdom Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000 and cames on an intermnational commercial, private and investment
banking business

The prncipal nsks faced by the Bank and detals of dervatives and financial instruments
held are set out in note 25

The Bank enjoyed a successful year of performance The Bank continued to focus
on its core lending businesses of residential mortgages commercial propery, margin
lending and structured finance and in prowiding a global fund management service
to institutional and private chents

The actvites of the Bank in the forthcoming pered will conbnue to be those currently
undertaken

The Bark achieved net interest income of $54 8 mulion, a 24 3 % increase on the 2010
level of 3441 million The net interest margin (net wterest income / average
Interest beanng balances) was 19% (2010 19%) Total other operating income ncreased
by 1 3% to $24 5 millien

At the year end, total assets stcod at $34 billon (2010 $27 bilion) with loans to
customers of $18 billon, showing a 13 2% increase compared to 2010 Total deposits
amounted to $2 9 bilhon, 2 30 1% increase on 2010

The return on average equity (profit after tax faverage equty over the vyear)
was 14 5% (2010 91%) and the return on average assets (profit after tax / average
assets over the year) was 1 2% (2010 0 9%)

Filar llf aisc'osurss

As part of its implementation of the Banking Consolidaton Directive and the Capital Adequacy
Directive, the Financial Services Authonty requires the Bank to make certain disclosures to the
market, described as Pillar Il disclosures These are largely included within note 25 to the
Financial Statements However where additional disclosures are required these have either been
included in the Appendix to the Financial Statements or cross referenced within the Appendix to
other notes within the Financial Statements

The information included in the Appendix has not been audited

Cramazla cortniow ons

No charitable donations were paid duning the year (2010 $388)

Guernssy Branen
The Bank has a hranch based in Guernsey which held total customers deposits of
8127 453,000 as at 31 December 2011

Pelicy on payment to creditors

The Bank's policy, which 15 also appled by the Group, 1s to sstile terms of payment
with supplers when agreaing the terms of each transaction and ensure that supphers
are made aware of the terms of payment and abide by the terms of payment
Trade creditors of the Bank at 31 December 2011 were equivalent to 30 (2010 31)
days' purchases based on the average daly amount invoiced by suppliers during the year

Direcizrs
The names of the directors who served durng 2011 are those listed on page 2

In accardance with the Articles of Association, one third of the directors retre at each
Annual General Meeting Those retinng in 2012, being eligible, stand for re-slection
Aucitars

The directors have taken all the steps they ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any informaticn needed by the company’s auditors for the purpeses of therr

audit and to establish that the auditcrs are aware of that informatien  The directors
are not aware of any relevant audit informaton of which the audifers are unaware

A resclution to reappoint BDO LLP as the auditors will be proposed at the next Annual
General Meetng

On behalf of the board

p/(.&m.w{/é
—

Graham Dunnachie
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES AHLI UNITED BANK (UK} PLC
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

The drrectors are responsible for prepanng the Directors’ Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the group and company financial
statements n  accerdance with Intermatonal Financial Reporting  Standards  {IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of the state of
affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s nappropnate to
presume that the company will continue in business

The drrectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
tme the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statemnents comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assels of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulanties




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

AHLIUNITED BANK (UK) PLC

REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

Independent Auditor's report to the members of Ahl: United Bank (UK) PLC

We have audited the group and company's financial statements (the "financial statements") of
Ahll United Bank (UK) PLC for the year ended 31 December 2011 which compnse the Group
Income Statement, the Group and Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Company Cash
Flow Statements, the Group and Company Statements of Changes in Shareholder's Equity and
the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied n their preparation
Is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Urwn and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied In
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companigs Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company's members those matiers we are required to state to them in an auditor's report
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibiities of directors and auditors

As explaned more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibiliies, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view Our responsibility s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements In accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Ireland) Those Standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's)
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's website
at www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial statements
In aur apinion

- the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the group’'s and the parent
company's affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of the group's profit for the year then ended,

- the greup financial statements have heen properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Umion,

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 20086, and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Oointon on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given In the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you If, in cur opnion

- adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate
for our audit have not been recelved from branches not wisited by us, or

- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns, or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

P

Peter Chidgey, Senior Statutory Auditor,
For and on behalf of BDO LLP,

London

United Kingdom

lo Febru 2012

BDO LLP s a hmited liabiity partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number
0C305127)




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

AMLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER NQTES 2011 2010
$000 $000
Interest income
Interest iIncome and similar ncome ansing from non-trading investments 22,217 20,822
Other interest and stimilar income 86,191 63,230
108,408 54,052
Interest expense (53,616) (39,958}
Met interest ncome 3 54,792 44,094
Fee and commission income 19,696 21,087
Fee and commission expense (921) (1,119}
Net fee and commussion iIncome 18,775 19,968
Trading income - net 961 934
Other operating income 4 4,716 3,237
Total trading and other operating income 5,677 4,171
Total operating iIncome before imparrment charges 79,244 68,233
Provisions for lasses on loans and advances, impairment of non-trading investments and 10 (4,236) {14,700}
other assets - net
Net operating income 75,008 53,533
Operating expenses (24,127) (26.,023)
Profit before tax 6 50,881 27,510
Income tax expense 7 (14,501) (6,750)
Profit for the year 22 36,380 20,760
Other comprehensive income (after tax)
Net {Loss) / Gain on remeasuring available-for-sale investments (15,212) 1,553
Tolal comprehensive income for the year 21,168 22,313

The notes on pages 12 to 40 are an mtegral part of these audited financial statements




GROUP BALANCE SHEET

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

AT 31 DECEMBER NOTES 2011 2010
3000 $000
Assels
Cash and balances with central banks 1,862 1795
Loans and advances to banks 8 1,130,598 504 936
Denvabve financial instruments 25 30,693 29,216
Loans and advances to customers j¢] 1,767,372 1,560 955
Maon-trading investments 12 450,482 582,552
Property, plant and equipment 13 5,260 5577
Current tax asset 14 1,340 3147
Other assets 15 13,946 17,024
Retirement benefit scheme 28 18,008 13 044
Total assets 3,419,561 2 718,253
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 18 50,684 343,310
Customer deposits 17 2,883,800 1,912 380
Syndicated Loan 18 150,000 150 000
Denvative financial instruments 25 33,234 27.284
Deferred tax hability 14 3,718 2,816
Other liabities 9 20,426 22 7890
Other borrowed funds 20 16,918 20048
Total habilities 3,158,780 2 478,638
Issued share ¢capital 21 200,080 200 080
Share premium 21 128 128
Other {defict) / reserves 22 {10,815} 4397
Retained earmings 22 71,388 35 010
Equity shareholders' funds 260,781 239,615
Total rabilities and equity 3,419,561 2,718 253
Memgrandum items
Contingent labilties 23 16,057 17,795
16,057 17,795
Commitments 24 150,597 268 702
150,597 268,702
The potes on pages 12 1o 40 are an wiegral pan of these audited financial statements .
) 4 i
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Fahad Al-Ra@an Hamad Al-Marzoug
Chairman Deputy Chairman

Graham Dunnachie
Chief Executive Officer

The financial staternents were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on VO ﬁibTOC\y 2012



BANK BALANCE SHEET

AHLY UNITED BANK {UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

AT 31 DECEMBER NOTES 2011 2010
$000 $000
Assets
Cash and batances with central banks 1,862 1,705
Leans and advances to banks 8 1,130,598 504 936
Denvative financial instruments 25 30,693 29,216
Loans and advances to customers g 1,767,372 1,580,855
MNan-trading investments 12 450,482 582,559
lnvestments in group undertakings 11 658 2,158
Property, plant and equipment 13 5,260 5,577
Current tax asset 14 1,340 3,147
Other assets 15 13,946 17 024
Retirerment benefit scheme 28 18,008 13,044
Total assets 3,420,219 2,720 411
Liahihties
Deposits from banks 16 50,684 343310
Customer deposits 17 2,884,458 1,814 548
Syndicated Loan 18 150,000 150,000
Dervative financial instruments 25 33,24 27,284
Deferred tax habiiity 14 3,718 2818
Other liabilities 19 20,426 22790
Other borrowed funds 20 16,918 20048
Totai labities 3,159,438 2,480 796
Issued share capital 21 200,080 200,080
Share premium 21 128 128
Other (deficit) / reserves 22 {10,815} 4397
Retained earnings 22 71,388 35,010
Equity sharehotders' funds 260,781 230815
Tota! iabilites and equity 3,420,219 2720411

y\es on pages 2 to 40 are an integral part of these audded fipenceal statemnents

Lo e fpf—

Fahad Al-Rajaan armad Al-Marzoug
Chairman Deputy Chairman

The finantia) statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed forissue on \D Febmarﬁ

2012

/egm aackee
mhle

Chief Executive Officer



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPCRT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 2010
$000 $000
Cash flows from operating activibes
Profit before tax 50,881 27,510
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization 1,454 1,419
Amortization and revaluation of non-trading investments {18,840) {1,866)
Profit on sale of non-trading investments {738) 0
Provision for losses on leans and advances 5,926 15,074
Release for impairment of non-trading investments and contingencies (1,690) (374)
Operating cash flows before changes In operaung assets and habilites 36,993 41,763
Changes in
Loans and advances lo customers {212,343) (266,126}
Other assets (including denvative financial instruments) {16,057) (14,179)
Deposits from banks (292,626) 103,100
Customer deposits 971,410 547,778
Other habilites (including dernvative financial instruments and borrowed funds) 15,291 15,016
Cash from operatons 502,668 427,352
Net tax paid {7,675) 2
Net cash from operating activittes 494,993 427,354
Cash fiows from investing activities
Purchase of non-trading investments (64,538) (259,383)
Proceeds from sale and maturity of non-trading investments 198,563 118,283
Investment in property, plant and equipment {1,137} (1,123)
Net cash from / {used in) investing activiies 132,888 (142,223)
Cash flows from financing actvities
Other borrowed funds repaid (3.130} 0
Net cash used in financing activities (3.130) (4
Forexgn currency translation adjustments 978 15,245
Net decrease i cash and cash equivalents 625,729 300,376
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 506,731 206,355
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,132,460 506,731
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash and balances wath central banks 1,862 1,795
Loans and advances to banks - with an onginal maturity of three months or less 1,130,598 504,936
1,132,460 506,731

The notes on pages 12 to 40 are an integral part of these audited financral slatements




BANK STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 2010
$000 $000
Cash flows from operating actities
Profit before tax 50,881 27,510
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization 1,454 1,419
Amaortization and revaluation of non-trading mvestments (18,840} (1,866)
Profit on sale of non-trading investments (738) 0
Provision for losses on loans and advances 5,926 15,074
Release for impairment of non-trading investments and contingencies {1,690) (374)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and iabilities 36,993 41,763
Changes in
Loans and advances to customers {212,343) (266,126)
Other assets (including denvative financtal instruments) (16,057) (14,179)
Deposits from banks {292,626) 103,100
Customer deposits 969,910 547,747
Other labilities (including derivative financial instruments and other borrowed funds) 15,291 15,043
Cash from operations 501,168 427,348
Net tax paid (7,675) 2
Net cash from operating activities 493,493 427,350
Cash fiows from investing activities
Purchase of non-trading investments {64,538) (259,383)
Proceeds from sale and matunity of non-trading investments 198,563 118,283
Investment in property, plant and equipment (1,137 {1,123)
Proceeds from investments 1,500 0
Net cash from / {used 1n) iInvesting activities 134,388 (142,223)
Cash flows from financing activities
Other borrowed funds repaid {3,130) 0
Net cash used in financing activities (3,130) 0
Foreign currency translation adjustments 978 15,249
Net decrease in cash and cash eguivalents 625,729 300,376
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 506,731 206,355
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,132,460 506,731
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise
Cash and balances wath central banks 1,862 1,795
Loans and advances to banks - with an onginal matunty of three months or less 1,130,598 504,936
1,132,460 506,731

The notes on pages 12 to 40 are an integral part of these audited financial statements
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GROUP AND BANK STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANGIAL STATEMENTS 2011

GROUP AND BANK SHARE SHARE OTHER RETAINED
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Changes In equity 20711
At 1 January 2011 200 080 128 4397 35010 239,615
Avallable-for-sale investments valuation net loss Q [A] {15 212) 0 {15.212)
200 080 128 {10 815) 35010 224,403
Profit for the year 0 0 [¢] 36 380 36,380
200 080 128 {10,815) 71,390 260,783
Currency translation differances 0 0 0 (2) {2)
At 31 December 2011 200 080 128 {10 815) 71388 260,781
GROUP AND BANK SHARE SHARE OTHER RETAINED
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Charges in equity 2010
At 1 January 2010 200 080 128 2 844 14 252 217,304
Avallable-for-sale investrments valuation gains g 0 1553 1] 1,553
200 080 128 4397 14 252 218,857
Profit for the year 0 0 Q 20 760 20,760
200 080 128 4397 35012 233,817
Currency translation differences 0 0 0 {2) {2)
At 31 December 2010 200 080 128 4 397 35010 233,615

The notes on pages 12 to 40 are an integral part of these audited financial statements

Eh!




NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AHLIUNFTED BANK (UK} PLC
at 31 December 2011 REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2041

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 1 Baslis of consolidation

The consobdated financial statements compnse the financial statements of the Bank and s subsklianes (logether known as the 'Group?)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 The financial statements of matenal subsidianes are prepared for the same
reporting year as the Bank using consistent accountng polices Adjustments ara made o beng nto lne any dissmilar accountng policies
that may exsst Al matenal intragroup balances transactons, income and expenses and profits and losses resuling from intra-group
transactons are aliminated in full on consobdation

Subsidianes are fully consoldated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group Control 1s achieved where the Bank has the power
o govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtan benefits from s actvites The results of subsiianes acquired or disposed
of dunng the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the date of acquisiton or up to the date of disposal as appropnate

No income statement 1s presented for the Bank as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006
The prncipal subsidianes are set out in note 11

Basis of preparation

The consoldated financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis as modified for the remeasurement at far value of trading and
avallable-for-sale financial assets and all denvatives In additon, as more fully discussed below in note 13 (f) (1), assets that are far value hedged
are adjusted to the extent of the far vatue of the nsk being hedged The consoldated financial statements are presented n US Dallars which 1s the
Groups's functonal cumency and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (US Dollar thousand) except where otherwise indicated
The US Dollar / Sterling foreign exchange rate applcable as at the reporting date was 1 54

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Internatonal Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Intermatonal Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by the EU, and mnterpretations 1ssued by the Intemational Financial Reportng
Interpratatons Committee of the IASB and In accordance with the special prowvisons of Part IV [Section 6, Part 2] of the Companies Act 2006
relating to banking companies

New standards, Interpretations and amendmants effective from 1 January 2011

None of the new standards interpretations and amendments effectve for the first tme from 1 January 2011 have had a matenal effect on the
financial statements

New standards, Interpretations and amendmaents not yet effective

The following new standards have been issued by the Intemnational Accountng Standards Board (IASB) but are not yet mandatery for the year ended
31 December 2011 -

-IFRS 8 Financial Instruments Classification and Measurement effective annual penods commencing 1 January 2015
- IFRS 10 Consoldated Financial Statements effectve annua! penods commencing 1 January 2013

- IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements effective annual penods commencing 1 January 2013

- IFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in Other Entites effective annual penods commencing 1 Janaury 2013

- IFRS 13 Far Value Measurement effective annual penods commencing 1 January 2013

IFRS 9 Fwanciai Instruments was pubhished in November 2009 and contaned requrements for financial assets Regqurements for financial liabilites
wera added to IFRS 9 in October 2010 Most of the requrements for financal liabittes were camed forward unchanged from IAS 39 However, some
changes were mada to the farr vahie opton for financal labiles to address the 1ssue of own credd nsk

On 16 Decembar 2011, IASB pubhshed Mandatory Effectve date and Transiton Disclosures (Amendments to IFRS ¢ and IFRS 7), which amends the
effectve date of IFRS 9 to annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 and modifies the relef from restating comparatve penods and the
associated disclosures n [FRS 7

IAS 19 Employee Benefits - On 16 June 2011 the IASB published an amended |AS 19 Employee Benefits The amendments,

- ehminate an option to defer the receaniion of gains and lesses, knawn as the ‘corridor method®

~ streamline the presentaton of changes in assets and labiltes ansing from defined benefits plans, including requinng remeasurements to be
presented in other comprehensive income (CCN

- enhance the disclosure requirements for defined benefit plans, providing better informaton about the charactenstcs of deflned benefit plans and the
nsks that entities are exposed to through partcepation in those ptans

The amended version of IAS 19 comes into effect for the financial years beginning an or after 1 January 2013 Earller applicaton is permitted

The Group 1s not eary adopting IFRS 9 and the amendment to IAS 19 and s cumently assessing the impact and timing of appkcation of these on the
Group’s future financial statements

None of the other new standards, interpretations and amendments which are effective for penods beginning after 1 January 2011 and which have nat
been adopted early, are expected to have a matena! effact on the Group's future financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AHLIUNITED BANK (UK} PLC
at 31 December 2011 REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2011

1 2 Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparaton of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements and estimates that affect the reported amount
of financial assets and habilties and dwisclosure of contngent hablites These judgements and estmates also affect the revenues and expenses
and the resultant provisions as well as fair value changes reported in equity

Judgements

Judgements are made i the classdication of avalable-for-sale, held-for-tradng and held-to-maturty Investments based on managements
intention at the acquistion of the financial asset Judgements are also made in the determinaton of the objectve ewvidence that a financal asset is
impaired

Estimates

Pension plan

Estmates and assumptons are used in determining the Group's penson labilites The prncipal actuaral assumptions used for the defined
benefit pension plan are set out in note 28

Impatrment losses on loans and advances, non-trading investments and other assets

Estimates are made regarding the amount and trming of future cash flows when measuring the leve! of provisions required for non-performing loans portfokos of
perfforming  loans with similar nsk charactenstcs where the nsk of default has increased, as well as for provisions for non-trading
nvestments and other assets These are more fully descnbed in note 1 3 (e) and note 10

Faur value of financial mstruments

Estmates are also made in determining the fair values of financial assets and dervatives that are not quoted in an active market. Such estmates are necessanly
based on assumptons about several factors invelving vamng degrees of uncertanty and actual resuits may differ resuting n future
changes Iin such provisions

The methodology and assumptons used for estmatng future cash flows are reviewed regularty to reduce any differences between loss estmates
and actual loss expenence

1 3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The prncipal accaunting policies apphed n the preparation of these consoldated and Bank financiat statements are set out below These policies have been
cansistently appled to all the years presented

(a) Foreign currency translation

{#} Transactions and balances

Transactions in foregn cumencies are ntially recorded in the funchonal cumency at the rate of exchange prevaling on the date of the transacton
Monetary assets and habilites denominated n fore:gn cumencies are translated mto the functional cumency at the rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date Any resuling exchange differences are included n “trading Income - net™ n the consoldated statement of income
Non-monetary assets and liabilites that are measured at histoncal cost In a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates
of the wibal transactons Non-monetary avallable-for-sale investments measured at far value In a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date the far value 1s determined and the differences are included in other comprehensive income as part of the far value
adjustment of the respectve tems, unless these tems are pant of trading secunties as explaned n note 13 (b} (w) or are part of an effective
hedging strategy, in which case it is recorded in the consolxated statement of ncome

(u} Group companies

Assets and labites of foregn subsidianes whose funcbonal currency 1s not US Dollars are translated into US Dollars at the rates of exchange
prevailng at the balance sheet date Income and expense items are translated at exchange rates prevaiing at each month end as an approximation
for the rate at the date of the transaction

() Captal

The pnmary objectrves of the Group's capital management are to ensure that the Group comples with extemally imposed capital requirements and that the
Group maintains strong credit ratings and healthy caprtal ratios in order to support its business and to maximze shareholdars’ value

The Group's ordinary shares are classified as equty instruments The Group considers its capital to compnse its ordinary share capdal share premium,
accumulated retained eamings and other reserves  There have been no changes in what the Group considers to be capial since the

pravious penod

The Group Is subject to capital requirements imposed by the Financial Services Authonty (FSA) and as such must ensure that it has sufficient capital as defined
by the FSA, to meet its requirements as set out by the FSA These requirements have been met throughout the year




NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
at 31 December 2011 REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2011

{b) Financial instruments

The classficaon of financial instruments at inal recognion depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments wera acquired and ther
characteristcs Al financial nstruments are nmally recognised at the fair value of consideration gven, including acquistion costs associated with
the nvestment, except in the case of trading securites, the acquistion costs of which are expensed Premwums and discounts are amortised on a
systematic basis to matunty using the effective interest method and taken to interest Income or interest expense as appropnate

1) Date of recogntion

All "regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are recogrnised on the settiement date, 1e the date that the Group recewes or delivers tha
asset Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the tme frame generally
established by regulation or conventon in the market place

The Group accounts for any changes in the far value of the asset to be receved dunng the penod between the trade date and the setllement date
in the same way as it accounts for the acqured asset The change in far value 15 recognised in the consclidated statement of ncome for assets
classified as "rading secunties™ and it 1s recognised in equity for assets classified as avalable-for-sale The change wn value 1s not recognised for
assets camed at cost or amortised cost.

(1) Treasury btls and deposits with central banks
Treasury bills and deposts with central banks are wmibally recognised at cost Premums and discounis are amortised on a systematc basis
to ther matunty

{m) Trading secunties

A {nancial asset 1s classified as “held for trading” f 1t 15 acqured or ncurred pnncipally for the purpose of generatng profit from short term
fluctuatons in pnce Trading secuntes are nbally recognised at cost, bemng the far value of the consideration gven and are subsequently
measured at far value Resuftant unrealsed gains and losses ansing from changes in far value are wncluded in the consolidated statement of
income under "rading income - net” while dividend mcome s recorded in “dividend income” when the nght of the payment has been establised

() Held-to-maturity

Non-trading investments with fixed or determinable payments, fixed matuntes and which the Group has the intenton and ability to hold tll matunty
are classfied as held-to-matunty A#ter ibal recognion these are subsequently measured at amortsed cost using the effective mterest rate
method less allowance for impairment The losses ansing from imparment of such investmenis are recognised In the conscldated statement
of income

{v) Deposits with banks and other financial nsttutons and loans and advances

Deposits with bank and other financial msttutions and Loans and advances are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
matunties that are not quoted In an active market After mitlal recognibon, these are subsequently measured at amorbsed cost using the effectve
nterest rate method adjusted for effectve far value hedges, less any amounts wntten off and prowision for impaiment. The losses ansing from
impairment of these assets are recogmised in the consolidated statement of income n "provision for losses on loans and advances, non-trading
investments and other assets - net”™ and n an impairment afflowance account in the consclidated balance sheet Amorbsed cost s calculated by
taking into accoun! any discount or premium on acquistion and fees that are an integral part of the effectve interest rate The amortisation 1S
ncluded in “interest income” in the consolidated staternent of income

{vi) Available-for-sale

Non-trading investments that are not classfied as held-to-maturty, held-far-trading o loans and advances are classified as avalable-for-sale After
inial recognition, avarable-for-sale investments are remeasured at far value For investments in equity nvestments, whera a reasonable estmate
of the farr value cannot be detenmined the investments are camed at cost less impaiment provision

Unless unrealised gains and losses on remeasurement to fair value are part of an effective hedging retatonship, they are reported as a separate
component of equity untl the wvestment 1s sold settled or otherwise disposed of or the investment 1s determined to be impared at which gme
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity 18 Included In the consolidated statement of ncome for the penicd

Any gan or loss ansing from a change n far value of avalable-for-sale Investments which are part of an effectve hedging refationship, 1s
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of mcome to the extent of the changes in fair value being hedged

{vu) Denvatves

Changes m far values of the denvatwes held for trading are included in the consoldated statement of ncome under “trading income -net"
Denvatves embedded n other financial nstruments are treated as separate dervatves and recorded at far value, when ther economic
charactenstics and nsks are not closely relasled 1o those of the host contract and the host contract 1s not camed as held for trading
The change in farr value of such embedded denvatives 1s recognised in the conselidated statement of income

(i) Deposits, Syndicated loans and Other barrowad funds
These financial habrdities are camed at amortised cost, less amounts repaid
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(c) Derecogmition of financial assets and financial habiities
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 1s derecognised where
- the nghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,
- the Group has transformed its nghts fo receve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an oblgaton to pay the recewved cash flows In
full wathout matenal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, or
- the Group has transferred s nghts to receve cash flows from the asset and ether (1) has transferred substantally all the nsks and rewards of
the asset, or (1} has neither transferred nor retaned substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

A financial lability 15 derecognised when the obligation under the liability 1s discharged, cancelled or expres

(d) Deterrination of far value

The far value of financial mstruments that are quoted in an actve market 1s determined by reference to market bid and offer pnees respectively
at the close of business on the balance sheet date

The fair value of iabilites with a demand feature 1s the amount payable on demand

The far value of interest-beanng financial assets and labilibes that are not quoted n an actve market and are not payable on demand s
determined by a discounted cash flow model using the current market interest rates for financial instruments with similar terms and risk
charactenstics

For equity investments that are not quoted i an actve market, a reascnable estmate of the far value 15 determined by reference to the current
market value of another instrument that 1s substantially similar, or 1s determined using net present value technigues

Investments in funds are stated at net asset velues provided by fund managers

The fair value of unquoted denvatives is determined either by discounted cash flows ar opton-pricing models

(e) Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there s any objective ewidence that a specific financial asset or a group
of financial assets may be wmpared If such evidence exists the estmated recoverable amount of that asset or a group of assets 1s deteamined
and any mparment loss, based on the net present value of future antcipated cash flows, 1s recognised In the consolidated statement of income
and credted to an allowance account In the case of eguity nvestments, impaiment 1s reflected directly as a wnte down of the financial asset
Impairment losses on eguity investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income while any subsequent increases i their
value are recognised directly in equity

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity secuntes) are impared can include default or delinguency by a bomower restructunng
of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would nat otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or 1ssuer will enter bankrupicy
the discrepancies of an actve market for a securty, or other observable data relabng to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the
payment status of bormowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditons that correlate with defaults in the group In addion for an investment
In an equity secunty, a significant or pralonged decline in its fair value below its cost 1s objective evidence of impairment.

The present value of the estmated future cash flows for loans and other interast beanng financial asset 13 discounted at the financial assets's
ongnal effectve interest rate If a loan has a vanable interest rate, the discount rate for measunng any impairment loss 18 the current effective
interest rate The calculaton of the present value of the estmated future cash flows of a collaterzlised financial asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure Is probable

In addbion to specfic prowisions aganst wndividually significant financial assets the Group also makes cellectve impairment provisions on groups
of financial assets, which although not identfied as requinng a specfic provision, have a greater nsk of default than the nsk at itial recogribon
Finangial assets are grouped on the basis of simdar credit nsk charactenstcs that are indicatve of the debtors’ atuity to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms and the collectve imparment provision 15 estmated for any such group where credit nsk charactenstes of the
group of financial assets has detencrated Factors such as any detenoraton n country nsk, mdustry, technological obsolescence as well as
wentfied structural weaknesses or detenoraton i cash flows are taken e consideration and the amount of the prowision 15 based on
the histoncal loss pattern within each group, adjusted to reflect current economic changes

Loans together with the assocated allowance are wntten off when there 15 no reakstic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group if, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estmated imparment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occumng after the imparment was recognised, the previously recognised impament loss s increased or reduced by adustng the
allowance account If a wnte-off 1s later recovered, the recovery 15 credited to the 'provision for losses on loans and advances, non-trading investments
and other assets - net' in the conschdated statement of income
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(f) Hedge accounting

The Group enters inio dervaive instruments including futures, forwards, swaps and options to manage exposures to interest rates and foreign
currency nsks, including expasures ansing from forecast transactions In order fo manage particular nsks, the Group apples hedge accounting for
transactions which meet the specified cntena Denvatives are siated at farr value

At inceptonn of the hedge relatonship, the Group formally documents the relatonship between the hedged tem and the hedging instrument
including the nature of the nsk, management objectves and strategy for underaking the hedge The methods that wil be used to assess the
effectiveness of the hedging relatonship form part of the Group's documentation

Also at the wncepton of the hedge relatonship, a formal assessment 18 underaken to ensure the hedging mstrument 1s expected to be highly
effective In offsetting the designated nsk in the hedged item Hedges are formally assessed at each reporting date A hedge s regarded as highly
effective If the changes in far value or cash flows aftnbutable to the hedged nsk dunng the penod for which the hedge i1s designated were offsel
in a range of 80% to 125% For situations where that hedged tem 1s a forecast transaction, the Group assesses whether the transaction 1s highly
prabable and presents an exposure to vanabons in cash flows that could ultmately affect the consoldated statement of income

For the purposes of hedge accountng, hedges are classified into two categones (i} fawr value hedges whxh hedge the exposure to changes in
the fawr value of a recognised asset or kabilty and (1) cash flow hedges which hedge exposure to vanabilty in cash flows that 15 attnbutable to
a particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or habidity or a forecasted transaction

(1) Far vakue hedges

For far vale hedges whieh meet the condiions for hedge accountng any gan or loss from remeasunng the hedging wmstrument at
farr value 15 recognised smmediately in the consolidated statement of income The hedged tem s adjusted for far value changes relatng to the
tisk being hedged and the diference 1s recognised in the consolidated statement of income

If the hedging wmstrument expires or 1s sold terminated or exercised or where the hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accountng the
hedge relatonship 18 terminated For hedged items recorded at amorbsed cost, the difference between the carrying value of the hedged rtem on
terminaton and the value at which it would have been camed without being hedged 1s amortised over the remaning term of the onginal hedge If
the hadged tem 15 derecognised the unamorbsed far value adjustment s recognised immediately n the consoldated statement of ncome

For hedges which do not qualfy for hedge accountng any gans or losses arising from changes i the far value of the hedging instrument are taken
dwectly to the consolkdated statement of income for the year

() Cash flow hedges

For cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the porton of the gain or loss on the hedging nstrument which 15 determined
to be an effectve hedge 1s recognised mibally n equity The ineffective portion of the gain or loss, if any, on the hedging instrument 1s recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of Income as “trading ncome - net”

The gamns or losses on effectve cash flow hedges recognised intafly n equity are erther transfermed to the consolidated statement of income in
the penod in which the hedged transacton mpacis the consoildated statement of income or mcluded in the mitial measurement of the related asset
or lability

For hedges which do not qualfy for hedge accounting any gains or losses ansing from changes in the farr value of the hedging instrument are taken
directly to the consolidated statement of ncome for the year

Hedge accountng 15 discontnued when the hedging mstrument exprres or 1s sold, terminated or exercised or no longer qualfies for hedge
accountng In the case of cash flow hedges, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recogrused n equity remamns in equity unti the
forecasted transacton occurs, unless the hedged transaction 15 no longer expected to occur, n which case the net cumulatuve gan or loss
recognised in equity 1s transferred to the consolidated statement of income for the year
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{g) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial kabiites are onty offset and the net amount reported i the consohdated balance sheet when there 1s a cumently
enforceable legal nght to offset the recogmised amounts and the Group intends to setile on a net basis

{h) Property, plant and aquipment

Praperty, plant and equipment s stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation

Depreciation of buldings and other premises and equpment 1s provided on a straight-ine basis over therr estmated useful ives
The esimated useful lives of the assets for the calculation of deprectation are as follows

- Leasehold buidings and improvements - aver the penod of the lease

- Other assets - 2 to 5 yaars

{1} Revenue recognltion

0} Interest

Interest income on Ipans and advances s credited to the consohdated income statement on an accrual basis unless the collechon of principal
or interest is deemed non-recoverable, »n which case interest accrual 15 suspended Interest receved on loans where the recovery of the pnncipal
balance 15 uncertain 1s held in a suspended interest account and 1s used to reduce the carrying value of the lpan Interest income from financial
assels 1s cakulated using the effective interest yield method

{u) Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions that consttute remuneraton for nsk are taken lo the consobdated wncome statement over the duraton of the nsk
Front-end fees, net of direct costs, are charged to cover the costs of a continung service to a bormower and are recognised over the Ife of the
related advance Other frant-end fees are accounted for on a cash basis Fund management fees are credited to the income statement on an

accruals basis as services are provided

(m) Drvidend income
Dividend income ts recognised when the nght to recerve payment 1s established

{iv) Operatng leases
Rentals receivable and payable under operatng leases are charged in the consckdated income statement on a straight Ine basis over the lease
term

{v) Segment information

Operating segments are reporfed n a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker The chief
operatng decision maker has been ientfied as the Management Committee including the Chief Executve Officer and Deputy Chief Executive
Officers

() Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equwvalents compnse cash and balances with central banks, excluding mandatory reserve deposts together with those deposits
with banks and other financial nstitutions and treasury bills having an onginal maturty of three months or less

(k) Provisions
Provisions are recogrused when the Group has a present obigabton ansing from a past event, and the costs to setlle the oblgaton are both
probable and able to be reliably estmated

(I} Employee benefits

Defined benefit pension plan

Pension costs are recognised on a systematic basis so that the costs of providing retrement benefits to employees are evenly matched
so far as possble, 1o the service lves of the employees concemed Any excess or deficiency of the actuanal value of assets over the
actuanal value of habiites of the pension scheme, outside of a defined comdor s charged to the consohdated statement of mcome over the
average remamning service lives of the scheme members

Defined contrbuton ptans
Ahll United Bank (UK} PLC also operates a defined contnbution plan, the costs of which are recognised in the penod to which they relate

{m) Taxation

Deferred tax 1s recognised i respect of all temporary differances that have onginated but not reversed at the reporting date where
transactions or events have occumed at that date that will result in an obligaton to pay more, or nght to pay less tax, except that deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it 1s more lkely than not that there wil be sutable taxable profits
from which the future reversal of the underlying temporary diferences can be deducted

Deferred tax 15 measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods n which temporary differences
reverse, based on fax rates and laws enacted or substantvely enacted at the reporting date

{n} Fiduclary assets
Assets held in trust or n a fiduciary capacity (note 27) are not treated as assets of the Group and, accordingly , are not incorporated n the
consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group's income during the year all related to banking activities

For management purposes the Bank 18 organised into three major business segments
- Retal banking principally handiing mdnadual customers deposit and current accounts prowiding consumer lpans residential mortgages overdrafts crednt

cards and fund transfer facilites

AHLILUNITED BANK (UK} PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

- Corporate banking treasury and investments principally handling loans and other credit faciliies and providing money market and treasury services as

well as managemant of the Bank s funding

- Private banking and wealth managemant principally servicing high net worth ¢hients through a range of nvestment products funds credit facites trusts and

alternative Investments

Transactions betwean segments including intersegmental interest charges are conducted at approximate market rates on an arm s length basis

Sagment information for the year ended 31 December 2011 13 as follows 201
RETAIL CORPORATE PRIVATE TOTAL
BANKING AND TREASURY BANKING

$000 $000 $000 $000

Net interest income 14 912 27103 12777 54,792
Net fee Income 2373 3973 12 429 18,775
Nor-interest income / { expense) [ 5 762 (85) 5,677
17 285 36 838 25121 79,244

Imparment (charges) / recoveres (1 555) (2 543} {138) {4,236)
Net operating income 15 730 34 295 24 983 75,008
Operating expenses (3 200) (7 496) {13 341} (24,127)
Prefit bafore tax 12 440 26 799 11642 50,881
income tax expense {3 545) {7 638) {3,318) {14,501)
Profit after tax 8 895 19 161 8 324 36,380
Segmental assels 1] 812399 [ | 2055357 | | 482 558 3,350,314
Unallocated assets 69,247
Total assets 3,419 561
Segmeantal liabilities ] 1038 [ | 1230821 | 186G 542 3,101,402
Unallocated habilties 57,378
Total liabilties 3,158,780
Segment information for the year ended 31 December 2010 15 as follows 2010
RETAIL CORPORATE PRIVATE TOTAL

BANKING AND TREASURY BANKING

$000 $000 5000 $000

Net interest income 13 681 23 388 7,025 44,094
Net fee ncome 3401 4073 12 494 19,963
Nor-interest income / {expense) 0 4 256 (85) 4,171
17 082 31717 19 434 68,233
Imparment (charges) / recoveries 147 {14 956) 109 (14,700)
Net operating income: 17 229 16 761 19 543 53.533
Oparating expenses (5 764) (8 166} (12 093} {26,023)
Profit before tax 11 465 8595 7 450 27,510
income tax {(expense) { credit (3,439) (1075) {2 236) {6,750)
Profit after tax 8 026 7 520 5214 20,760
Segmental assets 1] 656 316 [ | 1598 141 ] | 395 788 2,650,245
Unallocated assets 68,008
Total assets 2,718 253
Segmental liabilties 1 146 489 | | 994 548 | | 1284,711 2,425,748
Unallocated habiities 52,890
Total abilities 2,478,638
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2 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
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Interest 18 analysed on a net basis above as this 1s the key interest performance indicator for each segment
Unallocated assets / labilites comprise denvative financial instruments, tax, fixed assets and retirement benefit scheme related balances and other assets!

lhabilities as shown on the Group Balance Sheet
Interest income 1s analysed by geographic area in note 3

3 NET INTEREST INCOME

2011 2010
$000 $000
Non-trading mvestments and certificates of deposit 22,217 20,822
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 23,865 15 893
Loans and advances 62,326 47 337
Interest income 108,408 84,052
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 35,968 29,160
Customer deposits 16,312 9,456
Syndicated Loan 991 1028
Subordinated labilities 345 316
Interest expense 53,616 39,958
Net interest income 54,792 44,094
Interest income 1s analysed by geagraphic area as follows
GULF UNITED
EURCPE COOPERATION UNITED STATES OF
(excl UK) COUNCIL KINGDOM AMERICA OTHER TOTAL
3000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Interest ncome
2011 27,763 11,289 49,677 564 19,115 108,408
2010 18197 12,603 40,003 507 11,742 84,052
4 OTHER CPERATING INCOME
2011 2010
$000 3000
Profit on sale of availlable-for-sale investments and related hedging instruments 738 0
Other 3,978 3,237
4,718 3237
5 STAFF COSTS
2011 2010
$000 $000
Staff cost
-wages and salanes 11,050 10 339
- social secunty costs 1,279 1,139
- other pension costs 1,463 3,222
13,792 14,700

The average monthly number of employees dunng the year was 94 (2010 27)
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAX
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2011 2010
$000 5000
Profit before tax 1s stated after creditirg
Income from hsted secunties 22217 20 322
Income from leased properties 112 109
Fee income from net fund management and performance fees 7,129 7412
Fee income from_trust and other fiduciary actvities 1,873 1906
and after charging
Directors’ remuneration 2,093 1275
Auditors’ remuneration
- audit services 310 299
- non audit services
- services relating to taxation 120 181
- other services 181 108
Depreciation 1,454 1419
Cperating lease rentals 1,893 1833

Payments of $55 000 have been made ta the defined contnbution scheme in respect of three directors  The emoluments of the directors are inclusive of SNilin
respect of the share based payment scheme  The emoluments include all fees and expenses and are stated gross before the deduction of LK income tax

The emoluments of the highest paid director in 2011 were $426 000 (2010 $333 000)

7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2011 2010

$000 $000
GCurrent tax expense - UK corparation tax on profits for the year 13,599 6139
Deferred tax expense - gngination and reversal of temporary differences (note 14) a02 1611
Income tax expense 14,501 6750
The tax rate for 2011 s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax applcabte  The differences are explained below

2011 2010

$000 $000
Profit before tax 50,881 27,510
Multiplied by the average rate of corporation tax in the UK of 28 0% (2010 28 0%) 14,247 7,703
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax pumposes / Income not subject to tax 254 (853)
Income tax expense 14 501 € 750

The tax credit relating to available-for-sale investrnent losses 1s $6 & million (2010 $0 7 million)
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8 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS
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GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 $o00
Repayable
- on demand 970,424 436 906
- within three months 160,174 18,030
1,130,598 504 936
2011 2010
$000 $00C
Included within the above amounts
IAmounts due from parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 29,502 18,378
9 LOANS AND ABDVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$00¢ $000
Repayable
- on demand 18,813 40 712
- within three months 50,354 54019
- between three months and one year 114,532 B9 550
- between one and five years 606,744 573950
- after five yaars 1,021,736 83503
Prowisions {note 10} {44,807) (32 310)
1,767,372 1560 955
| 2011 2010
$000 $000
Included within the above amounts {Bank only}
IAmouan due from fellow subsidtery undertakings 10,000 10 Q00
10 PROVISIONS FOR LOSSES ON LOANS AND ADVANCES, IMPAIRMENT OF NON-TRADING
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS - NET
Loans ard advances to banks, Gustomers and non-trading investments are stated net of the following prowisions
GROUP AND BANK SUSPENDED PROVISIONS TOTAL]
INTEREST
$000 $000 $009
At1 January 2011 0 40 307 40,307
Appled in writing off advances 0 6 691 6,691
Exchange rate movements (0) (179) 179
Net provision charge for the year 0 4 236 4,236
Additions dunng the year 46 a 45
At 31 December 2011 45 51,055 51,101
Of which
In respect of loans and advances to customers (note 8) 44,807
In respect of impairment of non-trading investments 5,294
51,11
Charge for provisions against loans and advances to banks and customers 5,926
Creadit for provisions against non-trading investments {1,690)
Met provision charge for the year 4,236
11 INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
Shares at cost 658 2,158
The following are the principal subsidianes Al operating enthes are engaged in the provision of financial services
Mame Country of incorporation Percentage holding
1IBU 1) Fund PLC Irefand 100%
AUB Finance BV The Netherlands 100%

A significant portion of the investment balance relates to 11BU 2 Fund PLC with a ¢arnyang value of $567 000 at 31 December 2011 (2010 $2 067 000} for which
a distnbution of $1 500 000 was recetved duning the year The camying value represents cash held in Ahl Urited Bank (UK} PLC on behalf of NBU Il Fund PLC
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12 NON-TRADING INVESTMENTS
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GROUP AND BANK AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE TOTAL
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $0C0 $000 $000

Non-trading investmenis 1ssued by Cther Issuers

Central and Local Govemment 82,695 83 313 82,695 83,313

Banks and Bulding Soceties 148 876 211176 148,876 211176

Other 218 806 287 934 218,806 287 934

450,377 582 423 450,377 582 423

Other Fund invastments 105 136 105 136

450,482 582 558 450,482 582 558

Non-trading investments analysed by matunty

Due within one year 22,238 22 858 22,238 22858

Due after one year 428,139 559,565 428,139 559 565

Other Fund Iinvestments 105! 136 105 138!

450,462 582 559 450,482 582 55¢

Non-trading investments analysed by listing slatus

Listed 417,495 554 980 417,495 554 980

Unhsted 32,882 27 443 32,882 27443

Other Fund Investments

Uniisted 105 136 105 136

450,482 582 55¢ 450,482 5827 559

Norni-trading investments analysed by IFRS 7 fair value methodology

Level 1 417,495 554 980 417,425 554 980

Laval 3 32,882 27 443 32,882 27,443

Qther Fund investments

Level 3 105 136 105 136

450,432 582 559 450,482 582 559

Although Group companies may act as the general partner and the manager of certan funds they act in a fiduciary ¢capaaty and so the investments in

those funds are included as other fund investments

An mpairment prowsion of $6 284 000 (2010 $7 997 000) was held against non-trading investments Level 3

Falr value

The moveTents for non-trading mvestments Level 3 are as foliows - 2011
$000

At 1 January 2011 27,443

Currency translation dfferences (938)

Additions 6 246

Repayments (1 559)

Provision release 1690

At 31 December 2011 32,882

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
GROUP AND BANK LEASEHOLD
BUILDINGS FIXTURES,
SHORT FITTINGS AND
LEASEHOLD EQUIPMENT TOTAL
$000 3000 3000

Cost

At 1 January 2011 5940 15,735 21,875

Additions 0 1137 1,137

Disposals 0 (744) {744}

At 31 December 2011 5,940 16,128 22,068

Dépreciation

At 1 January 2011 2,646 13452 16,098

Charge tor the year 263 19 1,454

Disposals ¢ (744) (744)

At 31 December 2011 2,909 13,898 16,308

Net book value at 31 December 2011 3,031 2,229 5,260

Net bogk value at 1 January 2011 3294 2283 5577
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GROUP AND BANK LEASEHCLD
BUILDINGS FIXTURES,
SHORT| | FITTINGS AND
LEASEHOLD EQUIPMENT TOTAL
$000 5000 $000
Cost
At 1 January 2010 5923 14,629 20,552
Additions 17 1,106 1,123
At 31 December 2010 5,940 15,735 21,675
Deprecialion
At 1 January 2010 2,383 12296 14,679
Charge for the year 263 1,156 1,419
At 31 December 2010 2,646 13,452 16,098
Net book value at 31 December 2010 3,204 2,283 5,577
Net book value at 1 January 2010 3,540 2,333 5 873
TAXATION
GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
5000 $000
Current tax asset 1,340 3,147
Deferred tax liability (3,718) (2 816)
(2,378) 331
GRQLUIP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
Deferred tax liability at 1 January (2,816) {1205}
Deferred tax charge in iIncome statement (902) {1,611}
Deferred tax hability at 31 December {3.718) {2 816)
OTHER ASSETS
GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
Prepayments and accrued income 12,482 14,335
Other assets 1,764 2,689
13,946 17,024
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16 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS

GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
Repayable
- on demand 40,457 18 559
- within three months 9,275 322,843
- between three months and cne year 8952 1,000
- between one and five years 1] 908
50,684 343 310
| 2011 2011
$000 $000
Included within the above amounts
IAmounts due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 11,994 147,542
17 CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
GROUP BANK
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 5000
Repayable
- on demand 1,228,795 B86 714 1,229,453 888 872
- within three months 1,326,913 688,390 1,326,913 688,390
- between three months and one year 3151711 325,972 315,171 325,972
- between one and five years 12,921 11 314 12,921 11,314
2,883,800 1,912,390 2,884,458 1,914,548
2011 2010
$000 $000
Included within the above amounts (Bank only})
’Aiounts due to fellow subsidiary underntakings (on demand) 2 Q
18 SYNDICATED LOAN
GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
Syndicated loan repayable 150,000 150,000

The US dollar denominated syndicated loan is repayable in September 2012 and 1t 1s the Bank's intention to repay this

19 OTHER LIABILITIES

GROUP AND BANK
2011 2010
§000 $000
Accruals and deferred income 19,323 20472
Other habilities and provisions 1,103 2,318
20,426 22,790
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20 OTHER BORROWED FUNDS
These borrowings are subordinated to the claims of all other creditors of the Bank

21

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
Sterling loan stock carrying interest at six months LIBOR plus 3/4%,* 6,357 6371
Sterling loan stock camying interest at six months LIBOR plus 3/4%, repayable 2011 0 1,625
Sterling loan stock carrying interest at six months LIBOR plus 3/4% repayable 2013 2477 2,483
US$ loan stock camyng interest at three months LIBOR plus 3/4%," 5817 5,817
US$ loan stock carmying interest at three months LIBOR plus 3/4%, repayable 2011 0 1,485
USS$ Ioan stock carmying interest at three months LIBOR plus 3/4%, repayable 2013 2,267 2267
The funds provided by these suberdinated loans raised by AUB Finance BV have all been
lent to the Bank on stmilar ierms but with interest payable at 1/8% over the rates shown
16,918 20048

* The loan stock 15 redeemable by holders giving notrce of five years and one day

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

GROUP AND BANK AUTHORISED ISSUED AND FULLY PAID
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000

Ordinary shares at £1 each (50,000 shares) 80 80 80 80

Qrdinary shares at $1 each 500,000 500 000 200,000 200,000

500,080 500 080 200,080 200,080

Share premium 128 128

200,208 200 208

22 RESERVES
GROUP SHARE SHARE OTHER RETAINED| | SHAREHOLDERS'
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS FUNDS
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

At 1 January 2011 200 080 128 4,397 35,010 239,615

200,080 128 4397 35010 239,615

Available-for-sale invesiments valuation net loss 0 0 (15 212) ] {15,212)

Prafit for the year 0 0 0 36,380 36,380

Currency translation differences 0 4] 0 {2) {2}

At 31 December 2011 200,080 128 {10,815) 71,388 260,781

Other reserves relate to avalable-for-sale farr value adjustments
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22 RESERVES (continued)

AHLIUNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

BANK SHARE SHARE OTHER RETAINED SHAREHOLDERS'
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS FUNDS
$000 $000 $000 $060 $000
At 1 January 2011 200,080 128 4,397 35,010 239,615
200 080 128 4,397 35,010 239,615
Avallable-for-sale investments valuation net loss 0 0 (15212) 0 (15,212)
Profit for the year 0 o} v} 36,380 36,380
Currency transiation differences 0 0 0 (2) (2)
At 31 December 2011 200,080 128 {10,815) 71,388 260,781
The movements in the retained earnings reserve of the Bank dunng the year were
BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
At 1 January 35,010 14,252
Profit for the year 36,380 20,760
Currency translation differences (2) (2)
At 31 December 71,388 35,010
23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
GROUP ANC BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
Guarantees 3,352 2,267
Irrevocable letters of credit 12,704 15,528
16,057 17 795

To facilitate its day-to-day secunties settlement operations Ah United Bank (UK} PLC has given a floating charge on its debt secunties partfolie (note 12)
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23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Contingent habilibes are analysed by geographic area and industry sector as follows

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK} PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

2011 2010
$000 $000
Geographic area
Europe (excluding United Kingdom) 5,324 7,896
Gulf Cooperation Council 8,577 8,890
United Kingdom 2,081 934
Other 75 75
16,057 17,795
2011 201C
$000 $000
Industry sector
Finance 540 541
Manufacturing 4,989 7 318
Personal 552 696
Real Estate 43 432
Other 9,545 8 806
16,057 17,795
24 COMMITMENTS
The amounts shown below are intended to provide an indication of the volume of business transacted and net of the underlying credit or ather nsks
GROUP AND BANK CONTRACT OR UNDERLYING
PRINCIPAL AMQUNT
2011 2010
$000 $000
Formal standby facifities credit ines and other commirsents to lend
-within one year 82,388 165,452
- between one and five years 57,307 90,389
- over five years 10,902 12,861
150,597 268,702
Forward and futures contracts outstanding at 31 December 2011 are analysed n note 25
Al 31 Dacember 2011 there were $855,000 {2010 $Nl) contracted capital commitments
Commitments are analysed by geographic region and industry sector as follows
2011 2010
$000 $000
Geographic region
Europe {excluding United Kingdom) 49,862 62,161
Gulf Cooperation Councll 15,431 13 885
United Kingdom 71,308 192,233
Other 13,996 423
150,597 268,702
2011 2010
$000 $000
Industry sector
Finance 10,504 8,805
Manufacturing 53,887 56,628
Personal 24,957 15 987
Real Estate 51,497 160,585
Other 8,752 26 697
150,597 268,702
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24 COMMITMENTS (continued)

There are autstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating ¥ which fall due as follows
2011 2010
$000 $000
- within one year 1,893 1,833
- between one and five years 7.463 7334
- over five years 9,147 11,001
18,503 20,168

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for leases of office properties

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT

The major nsks associated with the Bank's and Group s businesses are credit nsk, lquidity nsk, operational nsk and market nsk

Credi nsk

Credit Risk 1s the nsk that companies financial instiutons and other countarparties will be unable to meet therr obiigations to the Group  Credt Risk anses
pnncipally from lending but also from other transactions involving on and off balance sheet nstruments  The Risk Committee in conjunction with the Risk
Management Department have the respansibility for developing and implementing policies to ensure that all exposures are properly pre-approved, measured
and controlled With the exception of certan small retail loans, all credits are independently pre-approved nciuding, for credits over a set imit, by the Parent
Undertaking's Executive Committee  Credit proposals are put through a comprehensive nsk assessment which examines the customer's financial condition and
trading performance, nature of the business qualty of management and market posibon  In addibon an internal nsk rating model scores these quantiatve and
qualiative factors The credt approvat decision s then made and terms and conditons set. Exposure mits are based on the aggregate exposure to the
counterparty All credit exposures are reviewed at least annually  Measurement of credits includes geographae, product, market and indwvidual counterparty

concentration

All exposures are checked daly against approved hmits independently of each business unit and are reported to the senior management
The Group s first pnonty when malung loans s to establish the borrower’s capacity to repay and not rely pnncipally an secunty / collateral Where the customer’s
financial standing 15 strong faciites may be granted on an unsecured basis but when necessary collateral 1s an essential credit nsk mitigant.
Acceptable forms of collateral are defined within the credit nsk framework and conservative valuation parameters are also pre-set and regulady reviewed to
reflect any changes in market conditons  Secunty struciures and legal covenants are alse subject to regular review to ensure that they continue to fulfill therr
intended purpose and remain in lne with market practce  Guidelines are in place regarding the acceptability of types of caltateral and valuation parameters
The pnncipal collateral types are as follows

- morigages over residential properties,

- charges gver business assets such as premises plant stock and recewables,

- charges over commercial properbies being financed and

- charges over financial nstruments, such as debt secuntes and equites
The Group monitors the market value of collateral and requests additonal collateral when necessary in accordance with the undertying agreement
Possession arders for 4 propertes {in respect of 4 loans aggregating to $2 48m) were obtained in 2011 Such properties are valued and marketed by third party
professionals who, In consullation with Risk Management Department, seek te obtain the best pnce on sale
Arrears pokcy 1s stnctly controlled  The size of the balance sheet 1s such that t 1s possible to monitor each individual exposure to evaluate if specific provisions
are necessary and adequate A dedicated corporate recovery team within the Risk Management Department provides managenal focus to remedial situations
Addionally, a collectrve provision is held to cover any losses where there 1 objective evidence that losses may be present in components of the financial assets
portfolio at the reporting date  These have been estimated based on hustoncal patterns of losses in each companent, the credit ratings allotied to the borrowers
and reflecting the current economic climate in which the bormowers cperate The majonty of lending excluding interbank, 1s secured on assets The ma
geographical credit exposure 1s to the UK markets

It 1s the Group s policy to mantain caonsistent internal nsk ratings across the credit portfollo  The credit quality of the portfolio of lnans and advances that are
neither past due nor impaired ¢an be assessed by reference to the Group's intemal credit rating system  This facditates focused portiolo management of the
inherent nsk across all ines of business

The three credit quality ratngs grven can be equated 1o the following nsk grades

High Standard Risk Ratng 1 to 4 Undoubted through to Good Credit Risk
Standard Risk Ratng 5 to & Satisfactory through to Adequate Credit Risk
Watch list Risk Rating 7 Watch List Credit Risk

The rating system 1s supported by vanous financial analytics and qualitative market information for the measurement of counterparty nsk
Loans and advances are further analysed i the tables below into the following categones
Retail prncipally ndradual customers' consumer loans, residental mortgages and overdrafts
Corporate prncipally loans and other credit facilities for corporate and insbtutional customers  Also included are creddt faclibes
to high net worth indwviduals
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT {continued)

Exposures which are neither past due nor impaired are analysed by asset class and broad nsk categones as follows
2011 HIGH
STANDARD STANDARD, WATCH-
GRADE GRADE LIST TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $o00¢
Loans and advances {0 banks 1130,450 148 0 1,130,598
Derwvative financial instruments 30 693 0 0 30,693
Loans and advances to customers
Retail 891613 48,570 7142 947,325
Corporate 545,650 247,568 0 793,218
Investment securities
Avallable-for-sale 411 805 44,971 1] 436,776
3,010,211 341,257 7,142 3,358,610
2010 HIGH
STANDARD STANDARD WATCH-
GRADE GRADE LIST, TOTAL
$000 3000 $000 £000
Loans and advances to banks 499 776 5,160 0 504,938
Denvative financial instruments 29,216 0 0 29,216
Loans and advances to customers
Retail 702,594 50,874 989 763,457
Corporate 443 968 298,544 1729 744,241
Investment secunties
Available-for-sale 554,980 35576 0 590,556
2,230,534 399 154 2,718 2,832,408
An aged analysis of Loans and advances which are past due but not impaired 1s given below
RETAIL CORPORATE RETAIL CORPORATE
2011 2011 2010 2010
$000 5000 $0C0 $000
Less than 30 days 241 3021 734 9,173
Between 30 days and 60 days 3625 481 16,824 536
Between 60 days and 90 days 6977 16,553 5,297 18 595
Greater than 90 days 6,495 4787 7,393 7.856
17,338 24,842 30,248 36,160
Collateral 29,535 43,900 49,119 66 704
The collateral compnises residental properties
Gross and net exposures to Individually impaired Loans and advances can be analysed as follows
GROSS NET GROSS NET
2011 2011 2010 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000
Retail 3136 1497 ¢ 4]
Corporate 26,320 6 808 19,158 5518
29,456 8,305 19159 5518
Collateral 10,732 17 934

The collateral held against individually imparred loans compnses commercial and residential properties
A specific provision of $21,151,000 (2010 $13 841,000) was held against these tmpaired loans and advances No individually impaired Loans were
restructured dunng the year Interest income includes $48 000 (2010 $NIL} on impaired Loans and advances
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

2011 GULF UNITED
EUROPE COOPERATION UNITED| |STATES OF
(excl UK} COUNCIL KiNGDOM AMERICA OTHER TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 5000
Leoans and advances to banks 535,645 80,000 508,920 5 569 464 1,130,598
Denvative financial instruments 5 805 5 760 19128 ¢ Q 30,693
Loans and advances to customers
Retail 162,145 122,467 485,324 6,383 183,934 960,253
Corporate 435 263 21212 238743 69 111 832 807,119
Investment securities
Avallable-for-sale 111,356 94,986 168,557 13,278 62,305 450,483
Contingent hablites 5,323 8,577 2,082 0 75 16,057
Commitments 49,864 15,431 71,308 9 13,985 150,597
1,305,401 348,433 1,494,062 25,308 372,595 3,545,799
2010 GULF UNITED
EURQPE COOPERATION UNITED| | STATES OF
[excl UK) COUNCIL KINGDOM AMERICA OTHER TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Loans and advances to banks 53,334 20,281 373,798 56,928 595 504,936
Dernvative financial instruments 8,453 3,083 17,640 0 0 29,216
Loans and advances tc custemers
Retail 98,915 116,635 427177 4,192 143,150 790,089
Corporate 376,064 31,831 259,107 750 163,034 770,386
Investment secunties
Avallable-for-sale 107,128 206,625 199,566 14,006 55,234 582,659
Centingent llabiities 7,895 8,890 934 0 75 17,795
Cemmitments 62,161 13,885 192,233 B 415 268,702
713991 401 230 1470455 75884 302,503 2964 163
Exposures are analysed by industry as follows
2011 MANU- REAL
FINANCE FACTURING PERSONAL ESTATE OTHER TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000 5000 $000
Loans and advances to banks 1 130 598 0 0 0 0 1,130,598
Cenvative financial instruments 28,580 Q 73 4] 2,040 30,693
Loans and advances to customers
Retail 0 0 668 571 291 256 426 960,253
Corparate 8,880 84,745 12,244 668,146 33,104 807,119
Investment secunties
Available-for-sale 193,151 67,622 Q 9798 179 911 450,482
Contingent liabilities 540 4,989 552 431 9,546 16,058
Commitments 10,504 53,887 24,957 51,497 9,751 150,596
1,372,253 211,243 706,397 1,021,128 234,778 3,545,799
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT {continued)

2010 MANU- REAL
FINANCE FACTURING| PERSONAL ESTATE OTHER TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000 3000 $000
Loans and advances to banks 504,936 0 Q 0 4] 504 036
Derivative financial instruments 27636 0 ? 0 15732 29 216
Loans and advances to customers
Retad Q 0 589 304 200 327 438 790 069
Corporate 19132 123 800 11 489 540 988 66,477 770 886
Investmant secunties
Avallable-for-sale 270 248 57,401 0 19 849 235 061 582 559
Contingent labilites 541 7,318 698 432 838086 17 795
Commitments 8804 56 628 15 987 160 588 26 697 268 702
831 297 245147 617 485 931,182 339,052 2 964,163
Liquidity nsk

Liquidity is managed by the Asset and Liability Commuttee which ensures the ability of the Group to meet the demands of customers for additional borrowing and to replace
existing deposits as they mature  The mismatch of labilities to assets as a percentage of total deposits 1s within that requirad by the UK Financial Services Authority under s
Liquidity Guidehnes and 1s monitored dally A maturity ladder analyzing the iInward and outward cash-flow 15 produced daily to ensure comphiance with internal policy and
regulatory gudelines

Liquidity policy covers all currencies It specifies the means of monitoning volatilty of deposit base and diversification of funding

Proceadures in the event of extreme market conditions are alse included as well as responsibiities for reporting and approving reports and limits

The undiscounted contractual cash flows of financial labilties at the reporting date of both dervative and nen-denvatrve financial instruments are as follows

2011 After After
3 months 1 year Per
Withun Within but wittun but within After Balance
1 month 3 months 1 year 5years 5 years Total Sheet
3000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Deposits from banks 50 002 a 852 0 0 50,954 50 684
Customer deposits 1732 651 827 178 317 466 16 545 0 2,893,840 2 883 800
Other borrowed funds 20 39 178 7017 11048 18,302 16 918
Syndicated loan 75 150 150 338 0 0 150,563 150 000
Total habities 1,782,748 827,367 468,934 23,562 11,048 3,113,659 3101 402
Dermvativas - nflows (8 885} (8 292) {13,712) (20,907) (2378) (54,170)
Derwatvas - outflows 1 544 1 802 11 765 39 806 3 248 58,265 I
Total 1775,407 520,877 486,987 42,561 11,922 3,117,754 |
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT {continued)

2010 After After
3 months 1 year Per
Within Withun but within but within After Balance
1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total Sheet
$000 5000 $000 $000 $000 $00¢ $000
Deposits from banks 107,045 235 533 1,000 a07 4] 344,485 343,310
Customer deposits 1,153,282 423139 329,586 11,314 0 1,917,321 1,912,390
Other borrowed funds 23 47 3,305 5,565 12,614 21,554 20,048
Syndicated lean 75 150 675 151,800 0 162,700 150,000
Total iabilities 1,260,425 658,869 334,566 169,586 12,614 2,436,060 2425748
Denvatives - inflows (2,880) (7.568) (8 414) (47,014) {6 966) (72,840)
Denvatives - cutflows 1,738 5,496 15 856 45,246 6 281 75,617
Total 1,259,283 656,799 342,008 168,818 11,929 2,438,837

The fiability matunties disclosed in the table are contractual the majonty of the deposits by customers are expected to be rolled over rather than repad an the
contractual matunty date Consequently, the Group assesses the ikelihood of rapayment of these habikties when assessing its quidity

Operational Risk

Operational Risk 1s the nsk that deficencies in information systems or intemal controls result in unexpected business, financal and operating lossas The
identification and control of these nisks 1 managed by the Board of Directors  The Bank's Risk Management Department cames out a regular review of all
operational areas o ensure opearatronal nsks are being property controlled and reported to the Operational Risk Committes

Contingency plans are in place to achieve business continuity 1n the avent of serous disruptions to business operations

Market Risk

Market nsk 1s tha nsk of potential financial loss that may anse from adverse changes in the value of financial Instruments or portfolio of financial instruments due to
movements in inferest rates foreign exchange rates or other pnices and volatiiies This nisk anses from asset-habity mismatches, changes that occur in the yield
curve, fareign axchange rates and changes in volatiitiesfimpled volatiities in the market value of denvatives The Group classifies expasuras to market nsk into
either trading or nan-trading portfolios Given the Group's low nsk strategy aggregate market nisk levels are considered low The Group utilizes Value-at-Risk (VaR)
models to assistin estimating potentiat losses that may anse from adverse market movements in addiien to non-quantitative nsk management techniques The
market nsk for the trading portfolio s managed and monitored on a VaR methodology which reflects the inter-dependency between risk variables Non-trading
partfolios are managed and monutored using stop loss imits and other sensitivity analyses

Currency nsk 1s the nsk that the functional currency value of a financral instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates

The Group continuaRy monitors its currency nsk position and has systems and controls in place that are able to calculate its foreign currency exposures ALCO has
set hmits for each currency and exposures are measured against these on a daily basis  Any currency nisk ansing from the Group's commereial banking and
lending activities in the banking book is transferred to and managed within the imits of the trading book

The Group had the following significant net expasures denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December

Long / {Short) Long / (Short}

201 2010

$000 $000

Bahraini Denar (5,150) (4 555)
Euro A 468
Great Bntain Pound (2,554) {3 522)
Kuwait Dinar {233) 293
Cmani Riyal 183 82
Other 757 1,037
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT {(continued)

Interest rate risk anses from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the value of financial instruments or the future profitability of the Group

The Group 15 exposed to interest rate risk within its Treasury operations which 15 monitored utlising VaR techniques as detailed in the VaR section below  Additionally
the Group 15 exposed to interest rata nsk in its non-trading book due to mismatches between the repricing dates of assets and labilties The net exposure s
measured daily in terms of the number of equivalent futures contracts in each currency required to hedge the nsk This risk 1s monitored within agreed imits and the
exposures at the end of the year n total and by indmwvidual currency were minimal

The total interest rate mismatch ncluding the effect of interest rate contracts used for hedging purposes as at the year end 1s stated i the table below

2011 After Adter After Non-
Effective 3 manths 6 months 1 year interest
Interest Within  but within but wathin but within After bearing
Rate 3 months 6 months 1 year 5 years 5 yaars funds Total
% $000 $000 $000 3000 3000 3000 $000
Assets
Leans and advances to banks 03 1132 460 o 0 e 0 Q 1,132,460
{including cash)
Loans and advances to customers 38 1677 182 37233 8083 32452 8 990 3,302 1,767,372
Investment secunties 45 16 650 0 5690 295 679 99 576 32,987 450,482
2,826,192 37.233 13,773 328,171 108,566 36,379 3,350,314
Nor-interest sarning other assets Q 0 0 0 "] 69 247 €9,247
Total assets 2 826,192 37,233 13,773 328,171 108,566 105,626 3,419,561
Liabilibes
Deposits from banks 10 49 732 V] 952 ¢] ] 0 50,684
Customer deposis 10 2555 708 177 516 137 655 12921 ¢} 0 2,883,800
Cther borrowed funds 16 16 918 V] 0 0 a Q 16,918
Medum term debt 06 150 Q00 0 Q 0 Y 0 150,000
2,772,358 177,516 138,607 12,921 0 [\) 3,101,402
Non-interest bearing other labilties Q [+] 0 ¢] 1] 57378 §7,378
Equity shareholders’ furds Q 0 4] 0 4] 260 781 260,781
Total labilities 2,772,358 177,516 138 607 12,921 0 318,159 3,419,561
Total assets loss
total habilities 53,834 (140,283} (124,834) 315 250 108,566 {212,533) 0
Off balance sheet items affecting
interest rate sensitvity 445 239 (7,324) (1655) (327494) (108 766) 0 0
Interast rata sensitivity gap 499,073 (147 607) (126,489) (12,244) {200) (212,533} 0
Cumulative interast rate sensitivity gap 499,073 351,466 224977 212,733 212,533 1]

All dervative instruments held by the Group the effect of which 1s to alter the interest bases of the portfolio of assets and habiliies are reflected in the above table
Short-terrn debtors and creditors are included in the above table as non-interest beanng items
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2010 After Afler After Non-
Effective 3 months 6 menths 1 year Interest
Interest Within but within butwithin but wathin After beanng
Rate 3 months 6 months 1 year 5 years 5 years funds Total
% $000 $000 $000 $000 3000 $000 $000
Assots
Loans and advances to banks 04 506 731 0 0 o 1 0 506,731
(including cash)
Loans and advances to customers 32 1 471 837 32,917 15,079 24,734 1778 14,610 1,560,955
Investment securities 48 3 299 9,652 9,906 392,829 141075 25797 582,558
1,981,867 42,569 24,985 417,563 142,853 40,407 2,650,244
Non-interest earming other assets 0 0 0 0 Q B8 Q09 63,009
Total assets 1,951,867 42,569 24,985 417,563 142,853 108,416 2,718,253
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 08 341,403 0 4,000 07 0 4] 343,310
Customer deposils o7 1 575,104 132,985 192,987 11314 0 Q 1,912,390
Other borrowed funds 14 20,048 a [ 0 0 Q 20,048
Medium term debt 06 150,000 0 [} 0 0 0 150,000
2,086,555 132,985 193,987 12,221 0 0 2,425,748
Non-interest beanng other habilibes 0 0 o 0 0 52,890 52,890
Equity shareholders’ funds 0 0 0 0 0 239,815 239,615
Total labilities 2,086,555 132,985 193,887 12,221 0 292,505 2,718,253
Total assets less
total habilities {104,688) {90,416) {169,002) 405,342 142,853 {184,089) (2,718,253)
Off balance sheet tems affecting
interest rate sensitevity 496,147 23 830 {16 375)  (364,655) (138,947) 0 0
Interest rate sensitivity gap 391,459 {66,586) {185,377} 40,687 3,906 {184,089) 4
Cumulatrve interest rate sensitivity gap 391,459 324,873 139,496 180,183 184,089 0

All dervative instruments beld by the Group, the effect of which 1s te alter the interest bases of the portfolio of assets and labilities, are reflected in the above table

Short-term debtors and creditors are included in the above table as non-interest beanng items
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)
VaR
The Group's exposure to market nsk 15 monitored using the VaR methodology of estimating potential losses

VaR Is a technique which estimates the potential losses that could occur on nisk positions taken due to movements in markel rates and prices over a
specified tme honzon and to a given level of confidence  VaR 1s calculated on an historical simulation basis, using one-day movements In market rates
and prices a 99% confidence level and taking into account the actual correlatrons observed historically between different markets and rates  The one-
day movement in market prices 1s calculated by reference to market data from a 100 trading day tustory  VaR should be viewed m the context of the
Iimitations of the methodology used

These include

- The use of a one-day holding penod assumes that all positions can be liquidated or hedged in one day this does not fully capture the market nsk
ansing from times of ihquidity, when one-day hquidation or hedging may not be possible

- The use of a 89% confidence measure does not take account of any Iesses that might occur beyond this level of confidence

- The use of histencal data as a proxy for estimating future events may not include all potential events particularly those that are extreme In nature

- Gorrelations Iin the future may change from those correlations observed in the past

- VaR s calculated at the close of business with intra-day expesures not being subject to intra-day VaR calculations

The key VaR positicns for the Group are as follows

Foreign Interest Effects of
exchange rate covariance Total
$000 $000 $000 $000
At 31 December 2011 27 0 {1) 26
At 31 December 2010 24 10 1} 34
Average daily
2011 22 3 {1) 24
2010 B 36 {2) 42
Mintmum
2011 8 0 0 B
2010 3 2 0 5
Maximum
2011 103 2 0 105
2010 1 221 (2} 220

The Group 1s therefore confident within a 99% confidence interval that given the nsks as at 31 December 2011 it will not incur a one day loss on its
trading book of more than $26 000 {201C¢ $34,000) based on the VaR model used

Baily VaR s independently checked agamnst board approved VaR mits  Furthermere the Group's exposure to interest rate nsk 13 measured daily
against imits by currency on a detailed matunty ladder in futures position equivalents  Risk 1s further controlled by an extensive program of stress and
scenano testing performed monthly, which calculates the profits and tosses which would result from a variety of projected interest and exchange rate
shifis The VaR futures equivalents and stress/scenario reports are presented to and discussed with the senior management of the Group at monthly
Asset and Liability Commitiee meetings to ensure knowledge and understanding of the Group's positions, strategies and resultant nsks remain current
among all relevant staff

Farr values of denvatives

The Group uses forward and futures denvative contracts as part of its asset and liabiity management process to hedge underlying on-balance sheet
postions The Group also uses denvative contracts for taking propretary positions in interest and exchange rate markets The use of denvatives Is
controlled through the Group s Risk department which 1s an independent area of the Group The Risk department Is responsible for ensunng that all
interest and exchange rate risk ts undertaken within the policy guidelines set by the Board and the Asset and Liability Committee  Market values are
determined using esther quoted market prices or discounted future cash flows based on market yield curves
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After 1 year|
Within 1 but within After
year 5 years 5 years Total
$000 3000 $000 $000
Contract or underying prrcipal amount by malunty
Exchange rate contracts held for trading purposes
2011 457,493 0 0 457,493
2010 428,128 100 000 Y 528128
Exchange rate contracts held for hedging purposes
2011 150,000 0 0 150,000
2010 1] 150,000 0 150,000
Interest rate contracts held for trading purposes
2011 o 1] 25,849 25,849
2010 o) o] 26,607 26,607
Interest rate contracts held for hedging pumoses
2011 32,818 413,739 70,708 517,265
2010 77152 396,324 161,232 634,708
Equity based contracts held for hedging purposes
2011 6,016 41,965 0 47,981
2010 14 939 35,596 0 50,535
Replacement costs by matunty
Exchange rate contracts
2011 17,759 5,442 a 24,201
2010 10,008 6,420 0 16,428
Interest rate contracts
2011 310 1,912 3,983 6,205
2010 698 3,004 4528 8230
Equity based contracts
201 158 129 0 287
2010 4351 207 o} 4 558
Positive Paositive Negative Negative
values values values values
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 5000
Fair values
Exchange rate contracts held for trading purposes 17,759 10,008 (138) {3 588)
Exchange rata contracts held for hedging purposes 6,442 6,420 0 0
Interest rate contracts held for trading purposes 1,363 958 {2,008) (1,633)
Interest rate contracts held for hedging purposes 4,842 7,272 (31,088) (22 D63)
30,406 24,658 (33,234) (27 284)
Equity based contracts held for hedging purposes 287 4558 (287) {4.558)
Negative values inciuded with host contract withn ¢
30,693 28218 {33,521} {31,842)
2011 2010
3000 $000
Credit nsk weighted amount
Exchange rate contracts
- for trading purposes 4,021 4,000
- for hedging purposes 2,788 2.784
Interest rate contracts
- for rading purposes 324 264
- far hedaing pumoses 1,941 2,542
Equity based contracts
- for hedging purposes 801 1,660
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

The replacement costs of denvatives can be analysed as follows

Financial institutions Non-financial mstitutions
2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000
Exchange rata contracts
- for rading purposes 17,680 9,706 79 302
- for hedging purposes 6,442 6,420 0 0
Interast rate contracts
- for trading purposes 1,363 958 0 ]
- for hedging purposes 2,802 5,698 2,040 1573
Equity based contracts
- for hedging purposes 287 4558 1} 0
OECD Non- OECD
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000
Exchange rate contracts
- for trading purposes 11,999 6,960 5,760 3,049
- for hedging purposes 6,442 8 420 0 0
Interest rate contracts
- for trading purposes 1,363 958 0 0
- for hedging purposes 2,802 7237 0 35
Equity based contracts
- for hedging purposes 287 4,558 0 0
Gain and losses on financiat mstruments
Trading income 15 analysed as follows
2011 2010
$000 $000
Treasury (12} 25
Foreign exchange 973 909
961 934

Treasury profits denve from interest rate futures, options, FRAs and swaps

Foreign axchange profits denve from spot and forward foreign exchange contracts

Net lesses on financial instruments held for hedging purposes and losses on the underiying hedged nsk were $11,326,000 {2010 $10,127,000) These
denved from interest rate and equity based contracts

Profit en sale of available-for-sale investments and related hedging instruments 1s detalled in note 4 and provisions against available-for-sale investments
are detalled in note 10 Thess include gains of $NIl {2010 $Nil) which have bean recyclad from Other Reserves Unrealised gains and losses are included
in Other reserves (note 22)

Fair values of other financial instruments

Trading Book

The Graup's trading book compnses denvatives All amounts are mcluded in the balance sheet at farr value

Non Trading Book

The fair values of listed and publicly iraded secunties held for non-trading book purposes {(compnsing debt secunties and fund investments) are disclosed
under the relevant balance sheet note

The fair values of other non-trading book balances approxtmate o their carmying value in the balance sheet where a hiquid and active market exists

The far value of financial habilites 1s not matenally different to their balance sheet valua

26 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The ultimate holding company of the Bank 15 Akl United Bank B S C , which Is incorporated in Bahrain and 1s the smallest and largest group of which the
Bank 1s @ member and for which group accounts are prepared Copies of the group accounts are available from Ahl United Bank B S C at PO Box 2424,
Manama Kingdom of Bahrain

27 MANAGED FUNDS
Funds managed or administered on behalf of customers and to which the Bank does not have legal dtle are not included in the Bank's balance sheet
The value of 2l such funds managed by the Group at 31 December 2011 was $1,587,000 000 (2010 $1,566,000,000)
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The Bank operates a funded defined benefils scheme for 1ts employees who joined prar to 1 March 2001 The assets of the pension scheme are held
independently of the Group s assets In a separate trustee admimistered fund As from 31 March 2010 the scheme was closed with respect to future accruals

This cessation has been treated as a curtaliment event as disclosed below

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet ara as follows

GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
Present value of scheme’s obligations 146,134 145,396
Fair vatue of plan assets (132,174} {127,300)
13,960 18,086
Unrecogrused net actuanal losses {31,968) (31,140)
Asset in the batance sheet {18,008) {13,044}
The assets of the scheme were as follows
GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
Value Value
$000 3600
Equities 92,522 80,383
Bonds 19,828 19,095
Cash 18,504 17,822
Other 1,322 0
Total market value of assets 132,174 127,300
The charge recogmised In the iIncome statement 1s as follows
GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
Current sernace cost 79 18
Interest cost 8,341 8,309
Expacted return on plan assets (8,793} (7.868)
Net actuanal losses recognised in the year 1,434 2 367
Losses/(gains) on curtailment [+ {431)
1,061 2,695

The actual retums on plan assets were $2,865,000 (2010 $13,480 000)

Pnncipal Actuapal Asswmptions

Expected investment return
Future rate of salary progression
Future pension increases
Euscount rate

Pre-retirement mortality
Post-retirement mortahty

S1NA_LUOSMC(03}FLA

2010

68%pa

na

34%pa

56%p a

ACO0
S1NA_LUOIMC(0O3)FLA

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets 18 determined based on best estimates of the fair value of the plan assets over the penod of the plan
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The movement in the fair value of pfan ts dunng the year 15 as follows
GROWUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 $000
At 1 January 127,300 112,561
Exchange rate adjustments (483) (3 307)
126,817 109 254
Expected return on plan assets 8,793 7,868
Actuanal gains {5,927) 5.613
Caninbutions paxd into the plan 6,250 7,449
Benefits paid {3,759) (2,884)
At 31 December 132,174 127,300
The movement in the present value of the scheme's obligations dunng the year s as follows
GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 3000
Al 1 January 145,396 148,900
Exchange rate adjustments {361) (4 378)
145,035 144 522
Employer's part of current Service Cost 79 318
Interest cost 8,341 8309
Actuanal fosses / {gains) (3,562) (4,438)
Benefits paid (3,759) (2,884)
Curtailments and settiements 0 {431)
At 31 December 146,134 145,396
The movement in the asset recogrised in the Group balance sheet dunng the year (s as follows
GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010
$000 3000
At 1 January (13,044) (8,544)
Exchange rate adjustments 225 254
{12,819) (8 290)
Total expenses as above 1,061 2695
Contnbutions by the Group (6,250) (7,449)
At 31 December (18,008} {13.044)
The expected contnibution to the plan to be paid in the year ending 31 December 2012 1s US$6 0 million
GROUP AND BANK 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$000 3000 $000 $000 $000
Prasent value of scheme's obhigations 146,134 145,386 148 900 107,147 158,447
Fair value of plan assets {132,174) (127 300} {112,561) {82 023) (133,978)
Deficit at the reporting date 13,960 18,096 36,339 25,124 24 469

{1} Defined contributions plan

The Bank also operates a defined contnbutien plan, the costs of which are recognised in the pencd to which they relate

The centnbution dunng the year amounted to $485,000 (2010 $377.000)
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On occasions the Bank carnes on normal banking business with related parties. including directors  This 15 all conducted on ordinary commergial terms
Transactions with related parties and balances outstanding as at 31 December were

GROUP AND BANK
Duectors &
Parent Fellow
Fellow Associates senior Other
2014 Notes undertaking Subsidizrnas management
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Interest incoma 3 175 [+ 0 a6 0
Irterest expense 3 {63) {226} (1) 0 {8,985)
Loans and advances to banks 8 29,151 351 €0 0 0
Loans and advances to customers 9 0 10,000 [} 6,379 0
Depostts from banks 16 {38) {11,956} (26,678) 0 1]
Customer deposits 17 0 {2) {2,502) {1,127} 1,494,906
Other borrowed funds 0 0 0 0 10674
Directors &
un::;:tl Sugselgl?:r‘les Fellow Associates senior Other
2010 Notes e management
$0C0 $000 $000 $000 $000
Interest ncome 3 488 0 0 86 (4,142)
Interest expense 3 {471) (146) 0 a 0
Loans and advances to banks 8 9939 3439 5000 0 o
Loans and advancas to customers 9 0 4] ¢ 6350 o
Deposts from banks 16 (38) (147 504) G 0 0
Customer deposits 17 0 0 (492) (1562) 825 081
Other borrowed funds o] 0 0 0 10 686
Key management and personne! remuneration 2m 2010
Short term employes benefits 1,415 921
Post employment benefits 55 41
1,470 962

Details of directors' remuneration are set out In note &
Thera are no provisions of iImpairment an the related party balances
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The major nsks associated with the Bank s and Group 5 businesses, togethar with key nisk management objectves and policies are detaled i note 25 to the

Financial Statements

There are no restrictions to the movement of capital betwesn the lagal entities within the statutory accounting group and there are no matenal differences
betwsen the statutory accounting group and the uncensolidated basis on which the Bank reports to the Financial Servicas Authanty (FSA)

Caputal resources

The called up share capital of the Bank is fully paid  Principal terms of the dated subordinated debt are detaled in note 20 to the Financial Statements.

2041 2010
$000 $000
Core lier 1 caprtal

Called up share capitat 200,080 200 Q80
Share pramium account 128 128
Profit and loss account 67,700 14 252
267,908 214,460

Upper tier 2 capstal
Collective prowision (restricted) 21,410 19 740
21,410 19740

Lowar tier 2 capitat
Datad subordinated debt (amortised) 14 072 15 660
14,072 15 660
Deduchions from total capital {1,824) (3 305)
{1824) {3 305)
[Net avaiabie captal 301,566 246 555

Capital requirements

The Bank montors the adequacy of its caprtal to support current activilies at least monthly against lvnits which are the egquivalent to an additional 4% over the
capital requremeant imposed on the Bank by the FSA  When the actual ratio s close to this it the capral requirement 1s calculated on a dally basis
Additionally detalled capital adequacy calculations are camed out as part of the budget process with frequently updated ferecasts betng produced throughout

the year Detaled analysis 1s carmed out n order to assess the ¥npact on capital resource requrements of all néw products

2011 2010
$000 $000
Credit nsk capiial requrement (Standardised approach)
Cantrat governments or central banks 1,259 435
Institutions €,036 7 236
Corporates 29,559 35680
Sacured on real estate proparty 26,040 47 969
Secured on commercial real estate property 21,915 0
Past due tems 1,386 817
Items belonging to regulatory hgh nsk categones 5,899 7357
Short term claims on institutions and corporates 20,194 10 6885
Other tems 3,021 3104
125,309 113 263
Market nsk capital requirement {Standardised approach)
Interest rate PRR 1,517 3 344
Foraign currency PRR 662 664
Counterparty nsk capital component 571 564
2,750 4572
Operatonal risk caprtal requrement (Basic indwator approach) 9,536 2069
9,536 9 068
Total capital requrament 137,595 126 904

The Bank calculates its credit risk weighted exposure amounts 10 accordance with the standardised approach The Bank uses external credit assessments
provided by Moody 8 to detarmine the risk weight of rated counterparties in certain standardised credit risk exposure cfasses The external rating 15 mapped to
the prescribed qualty assessment scale that in turn produces standard nsk weightings The standardised credit sk exposure classes for which such external
ratngs are used are Central governments or central banks, Institutions Corporates and Short term ¢lams on institutions and corporates
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Expesure values, both before and after credd nsk migation (CRM), for each credit quality step prescribed by the FSA are as follows
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REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

2011 Credit Quality Risk Exposure
Step Wenght Exposurs {after CRM)
% %000 $000
Central governmants or central banks
1 0 57 811 57,811
3 50 13124 13 124
Unrated 100 9,178 9,178
80,113 80,113
Institutions
1 20 61,445 61,445
2 50 98,907 98 907
3 50 11708 11 708
5 100 7.857 7.857
179,917 179,817
Corporates
1 20 28,837 28 837
2 50 31,880 31,880
3 100 123,098 123,098
4 100 22 889 22,888
5 150 4,341 4,341
6 50 1,629 1629
6 150 13125 13,125
Unrated 100 209,910 174,755
435,709 400 554
Short term claims on institubions and corporates
Institutions 1 20 892140 892,140
2 20 208,059 208,059
3 20 29,154 29 154
Unrated 20 67 67
Carporates Unrated 100 26,541 26,541
1,155 961 1,155,961
2010 Credit Qualy Risk Exposure
Step Weaight Exposure (after CRM)
% $000 $000
Central govemments or ¢entral banks 1 Q 70,936 4]
2 20 16 391 16,391
Unrated 100 2,184 2,164
89,481 18,555
Institubons
1 20 127,805 127,805
2 50 92,189 92 189
3 50 37653 37,653
257 647 257 647
Corporates
1 20 13913 19,913
2 50 97,517 97,517
3 100 130,524 130,524
4 100 4 167 4,167
5 150 19375 16,375
Unrated 100 275,759 224 375
547,295 495 871
Short term claims on nstitubons and corporates
Institutions 1 20 487,709 487,709
2 20 15,540 15 540
Unrated 100 10,007 10,007
Corporates Unrated 100 22,735 22694
535,991 535,950
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Counterparty credit nsk

AHLI UNITED BANK {UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20114

The gross pasitive farr value of denvative contracts 1s detaled in note 25 to the Financial Statements No advantage ts taken of netting agreements or collatera)
agreements The Group has not entered into any contracts whereby it would be required to provide additional coflateral given a downgrada in its eredit rating

The measures for exposures values of denvative finanaial instruments under the Counterparty Credit Risk mark-to-market methed are as follows
2011 2010
3000 $000
Exchange rate contracts
- for trading purposes 25,728 33,189
- for hedging purposes 7.942 13,920
Interest rata contracts
- for trading purposes 1,363 218
- for hedging purposes 2,802 5,698
Equity based contracts
- for hedging purposes 4,005 8302

The amounts after credit nsk weighting are included tn note 25 to the Financial Statements

Credit nsk

Detavs regarding the Bank's methodcology n assigning credit hmus and secunng collateral are detaled w note 25 1o the Financial Statements
The bank rarely makes use of on- and off-balance sheet netting and where this is utiised detarled analysis 1s carned ¢ut in order to ensure that the relevant FSA

cntena have been met

Tatal exposures (before credit nsk miigation) by exposure class and by matunty together with average amounts far the year are as follows

2011 After After
3 months 1 year
Within but within but within After
3 months 1 year § years 5 years TOTAL AVERAGE
3000 5000 $000 $000 5000 $300
Loans and advances to banks 1 130 598 4] 1] [ 1,130,598 1044,758
Denvative financial instruments 7,921 16 748 2,041 3,883 30,693 20,698
Loans and advances to customers 48 016 114 532 606,744 998 080 1,767.372 1774 499
Investment secuntes
Available-for-gale 165 548 56980 321,025 107 219 450,482 524 335
Conungent habiibies 1,145 13610 855 447 16,057 17 222
Cammitments 9,560 72 829 57,307 10 801 150,597 203,874
1213,788 223 409 987,972 1 120,630 3,545,798 3 585,386
2010 After] After
3 menths 1 year
Within but within but wathin After
3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years TOTAL AVERAGE
$000 3000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Loans and advances to banks 504,936 0 0 0 504,936 473,796
Denvative financial instruments 7,639 7 418 9,632 4527 29,216 28,428
Loans and advances to customers 84,417 89 551 573,950 813,037 1,560,955 1424786
Investment secunties
Avallable-for-sale 3,200 19,558 401 689 15,802 582 559 512,462
Contingent habilities 998 8,568 7768 461 17,795 14,006
Commitments 18,402 147,050 a0 389 12,861 268,702 238 087
619 692 272,145 1083,428 988 898 2,964,163 2691 565
The above exposures are analysed by geography and industry i note 25 to the Financial Statements
The total exposure value covered by eligible financral collataral, by exposure class 1s
2011 2010
3000 5000
Leans and advances to customers 35,005 51,142
Contingent Labilities 150 282
35,155 51,424

The eligible financial collateral 1$ prncipally cash
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Deta)ls of impaired exposure together with related provisions and past due {but not imparred) exposures analysed by geography are
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2011 PROVISION

GROSS SPECIFIC NET CHARGE/
IMPAIRED| |PROVISIONS IMPAIRED {CREDIT) PAST DUE
$000 $000 $000 $000 5000
Eurape {excluding United Kingdom) ) 4] 0 {6,006) 4,787
United Kingdom 29,379 {21,151) 8,228 7,053 5,149
United States of Amenca 77 1] 77 ] 1,346
29,456 (21,151) 8.305 1,047 11,282

2010 PROVISION

GROSS SPECIFIC NET CHARGE/
IMPAIRED| [PROVISIONS IMPAIRED {CREDIT} PAST DUE
$000 $000 $000 $000 5000
Europe (excluding United Kingdom} Qo 0 ] {6,051) 7 414
Guif Cooperation Council 0 0 Q 0 910
United Kingdom 19,069 {13 641) 5,428 3,365 5,953
United States of Amenca 90 0 90 0 0
Other [ Q 0 0 am
19 159 {13,641} 5518 (2,686) 15,248

Details of impared exposure together with related provisions and past due (but not impaired) exposures analysed by industry are

2011 GROSS SPECIFIC NET| [ PROVISION
IMPAIRED] |PROVISIONS IMPAIRED CHARGE PAST DUE
5000 $009 $000 $000 $000
Manufacturing 8,377 {5,345) 1,032 {977) [¢]
Personal 0 0 1] 11 259
Real Estata 23,002 (15,806) 7,196 2,013 11,022
Other 77 0 17 0 0
29,456 {21,151) 8,305 1,047 11,281

2010 GROSS SPECIFIC NET| [ PROVISION
IMPAIRED] |PROVISIONS IMPAIRED CHARGE PAST DUE
$000 5000 $000 $000 $000
Manufactunng 0 0 0 (9,193) 0
Personal Q 0 0 (100) T.877
Real Estate 19,158 {13,641) 5518 8,567 7,371
Other 0 0 ] 0 0
19,159 (13 641) 5,518 {2,686) 15 248

Onty those loans which have been past gue for more than S0 days are treated as past due for the purposes of caicutauing the Bank's mimmum capital requirements
and in the tables above Identification and treatment of impaired loans together with the methods adopted for determining provisions, is detailed 1n note 1 to the

Financal Statements
Cperational Risk

The Bank has adopted the Basic Indicator approach for operational nsk  Under this approach, the regulatory capital requirement for operational nsk Is calculated
by applying a co-efficient of 15 per cent to the average gross income for the preceding three financial years

Exposura to interest rate sk in the non-trading book

Detalls of the nature of this nsk and of its measurement by the Bank are included 1n note 25 to the Financial Statemerts
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The Bank's compensation policy 1s incorporated 1n the parent company's Group HR policy which 1s reviewed by the Group Compensation Committee on an annual

basis

The total vanable amount available 1s determined firstly by assessing the Bank's profitability compared to budget The employee s vanable remuneration i1s based
on the results of the annua! performance appraisal process The process assesses the financial and non financial atinbutes of the employees awarding grades
which result in a formula dnven bonus The resulting awards are then subject to @ moderation review by senior management before being presented to the

Compensation Committee for further revision and approval

The table below shows the fixed and variable remuneration for code staff based on borus payments paid dunng 2011

Fixed Vanable Total Number of

$000 $000 $000 Code Staff|
Pnvate banking & Wealth Management 2703 636 3,338 15
Corporate Banking 1,845 375 2229 11
Total 4,548 1.011 5,559 26
Senior Management 4.548| | 1,01 [ l 5.559| [ 26
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